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VISION STATEMENT

To transform the company into a modern and dynamic paper
converting company by utilizing experience of the team of
professionals to play a meaningful role on sustainable basis

in the economy of Pakistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

To provide quality products to customers and explore new
clients to promote sales of the company through good
governance and encourage a sound and dynamic team, so as
to achieve best prices of products of the company for sustainable
growth and prosperity of the company.
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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 55" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Pakistan
Paper Products Ltd will be held at the Head Office of the Company D/58 Estate Avenue SITE
Karachi on Thursday 26" October, 2017 at 11:30 am to transact the following business :-

1. To confirm Minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 11" May,
2017.

2. To receive and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended
on 30" June, 2017 together with the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report
thereon.

3. To approve the final cash dividend of Rs.2.00 per ordinary share of Rs.10.00 each
(20%,) for the year ended June 30, 2017, as recommended by the Board of Directors.
This is in addition to the interim dividend of Re.3.5/- per share (35%) already
paid making a total cash dividend of Rs.5.50 per share (55%) for the year ended

30 June 2017.
4. To appoint Auditor for the year 2017-2018 and to fix their remuneration.

By Order of the Board
(FAISAL SAEED KHAN)

Karachi Company Secretary

Dated: 18 September 2017

LA R LA R R AR R R R R LR R SRR

NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday 18" October
2017 to Thursday 26" October 2017 (both days inclusive). Transferred received at the Share
Registrar office M/s. F.D Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt) Ltd, 17" Floor Saima Trade Tower —A
l.IChudrigar Road Karachi 74000 at the close business on Tuesday 17" October 2017 be
treated in time for the purpose of payments of final Dividends to the transferees.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as
his/her proxy to attend the meeting and vote instead of him/her. The proxies in order to be
effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting. CDC
Account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in
Circular No.1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.
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A. For Attending the Meeting :-

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as
per Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original
Computerized National Identity card (CNIC) or original Passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

i) In case of Corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided
earlier) at the time of meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as
per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC
Numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the
meeting.

V) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along
with proxy form to the Company.

C: Zakat Declaration Certificate

3. Members who desire to stop deduction of Zakat from their dividends may submit a
declaration on non-judicial stamp paper duly signed as required under the law (if not submitted
earlier).

D: Submission of CNIC Copy (MANDATORY)

4. Pursuant to the directives of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan CNIC
number is mandatory required to be mentioned on dividend warrants, Shareholders are
therefore requested to submit copy of their valid CNIC (only Physical Shareholders) if not
provided earlier to the M/s. F.D Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt) Ltd (The Share Registrar). The
Corporate Entities are requested to provide their National Tax Number (NTN). Please quote
Folioc Number with the copy of CNIC/NTN details. In case of non-receipt of valid CNIC the
Company would be unable to comply with SRO 831(1)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 of SECP. Please
note that no dividend will be payable unless CNIC number is printed on the dividend warrants,
failure to provide the same would constrained the Company to withhold dispatch of dividend
warrants. Shareholders are also requested to notify any change in address immediately.

E. Change of Address and quote folio No. in correspondence

5. Members are also requested to notify any change in address immediately. The shareholders
are further requested to quote their folio number in all correspondence with the Company and at
the time of attending the Annual General Meeting.

F. Undelivered Dividend Warrants and Share Certificates
6. Mumber of share certificates and dividend warrants have been retummed marked as

“undelivered”. Any member affected by this is advised to write or call our Share Registrar M/s.
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F.D Registrar Services (SMC) —Pwt). Ltd 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A |.IChundrigar Road,
Karachi during working hours.Ph: 0092-21-32271906 Fax: 0092-21-32621233 Email:
info@fdregistrar.com

G. Circulation of Annual Financial Statements through Email

7. SECP through its Notification SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, has allowed the
circulation of Audited Financial Statements along with the Notice of Annual General Meeting to
the shareholders of the Company through email. Therefore, shareholders who wish to receive
the soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send their email address. The consent form for
electronic transmission can be downloaded from the Company's website. The Company shall,
however, continue to provide hard copy of the Audited Financial Statements to its shareholders,
on request, free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such request.

H. Placement of Financial Accounts on Website
8. Pursuant to the notification of the SECP (SRO 634(1)/2014) dated: 10" July 2014 the financial
statements of the Company have been placed on Company's website at www.pakpaper.com

I: Dividend Mandate: Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically: (MANDATORY)
According to provision of Section 242 of the Company's Act 2017 and reference to SECP

Circular No. 18 of 2017, any dividend payable in cash after 31* October, 2017 shall only be
paid through electronic mode directly in to bank account designated by entitled shareholders.
Shareholders having physical holdings shall submit the prescribed Dividend Mandate Form to
the Company's Share Registrar. The shareholders who hold shares with participant/stock
brokers or with Central Depository Company shall submit the prescribed Dividend Mandate
Form to their participant / stock broker or CDC with a copy of the Dividend Mandate Form to
Share Registrar of the Company. Dividend Mandate Form is available on company’s website,
www.pakpaper.com

J. Deduction of Withholding Tax on the amount of dividend (Mandatory):

Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2017 has made certain amendments in Section
150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of
withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. Tax rates are as under:

i. For filers of income tax returns: 15%
ii. For non-filers of income tax returns: 20.0%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of the cash dividend @ 15%
instead of 20.0% all the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax Payers
List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to
make sure their names are entered into ATL. Otherwise tax on the cash dividend will be
deducted @ 20.0% instead of 15%. For shareholders holding their shares jointly as per the
clarification issued by the Federal Board of Revenue withholding tax will be determined
separately on ‘Filer, Non-filer’ status of Principle shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on
their shareholding proportions. Therefore, all shareholders who hold shares jointly are required
to provide shareholding proportions of Principle shareholder and joint-holder(s) in respect of
shares held by them to our Share Registrar in writing as follows:

$5eh Annual Reporr 2007 6




& PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

Company Folio/CDC Total | Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Name Account # Shares | Name and | Shareholding | Name Shareholding
CNIC Proportion and Proportion
(No. of CNIC (No. of
Shares) Shares)

+  The corporate shareholders having CODC accounts are required to have their National
Tax Numbers (NTN) updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate
physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the company or our
Share Registrar M/s. F.D Registrar Services (SMC) —Pvt) Ltd. The shareholders while
sending NTN or NTN certificate, as the case may be, must quote company name and
their respective folio numbers.

K: For Video Conference:

l. Further to SECP S.R.0O. No.1027/(1)2014 dated 13th November 2014 clause 1(b) “The
company may provide video conference facility to its members for attending the general
meeting at places other than the town in which general meeting is taking place after
considering the geographical dispersal of its members:

Il.  Provided that if members, collectively holding 10% or more shareholding residing at a
geographical location, provide their consent to participate in the meeting through video
conference at least 10 days prior 1o date of meeting the company shall arrange video
conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city”.

.  The company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least
5 days before the date of general meeting along with complete information necessary to
enable them to access such facility.

I"We, of ., being a member of the
Pakistan Paper Products Limited, holderof _______ Ordinary Share(s) as per Register
CDC/ Folio no. hereby opt for video conference facility at

55th Annual Repor: 2007 7
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OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

Rupees in Thousand

207 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

|HISTORICAL TRENDS

Trading results

Turnowver 724,393 676,554 631,584 527,020 543,319 483,498
Sales - Net 659,935 613,672 576,333 504,312 501,239 433,308
Gross Profit 124,671 125,342 116,911 110,076 96,736 100,009
Profit before tax 73,059 62,572 73,455 73,404 60,024 64,544
Taxation 12,411 24,206 16.276 25,164 21,228 23,160
Profit after tax 60,647 38,365 LY 48,239 38,795 41,383
Dividend

Cash Dividend 35% a0%: 40%: 30% 30%% -
Stock Dividend 20%
Cash Dividend Value 21,000 18,000 24,000 18,000 18,000 .
Stock Dividend Value - - - = - 10,000
Dividend Payout 34.63% 46.92% 41.97% 37.31% 46.40% 24.16%
Financial Position

Total Assets 843,795 723,186 723,766 B37. 770 522,456 535,907
FPaid up Capital 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 50,000
Reserves 327,481 284 545 262,820 226,649 196,083 184,800
Working capital 223,235 225123 188,694 181,396 153,940 132,845
Current Ratio 3.03 3.77 3.39 3.99 3.60 2.66
[KEY INDICATORS

Operating

Gross Profit 18.89% 20.42% 20.29% 21.83% 19.30% 23.08%
Profit before tax 11.07% 10.20% 12.75% 14.56%: 11.98% 14.90%
Profit after tax 9.19% 6.25% 9.92% 9.57% 7.74% 89.55%
Return on Equity 15.65% 11.13% 17.71% 16.83% 15.15% 17.62%
Return on Assets 7.19% 5.30% 7.90% 7.56% 7.43% T.72%
Valuation

Earning per share (pre tax) 12.18 10.43 12.24 12.23 10.00 12.91
Eaming per share (post tax) 10.11 6.39 8.53 B.04 6.47 8.28
Breakup value per share 654.58 57.42 53.80 4777 42.68 46.96
Asset utilisation

Inventory turnover ratio 4.22 4,34 4.57 4.39 4.08 3.44
Total assels turnover ratio 0.78 0.85 0.80 0.79 0.96 0.81
Production

Exercise Books (Groose) 56,176 66,390 66,542 55,842 57.887 53,230
Amonia Paper (Rolls 10 yds) 33.187 36 B56 56,486 48,989 44,264 50,026
Pro-Labels (Sq. Meter) 4,336,380 3,482,032 2944592 2,792,742 2,930,907 2,636,652

*35% Interim Cash dividend paid for the year 2017.
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Statement of Value Added and its Distribution

2017 2016
Rupees in Rupees in
thousand %% thousand %%
Wealth Generated
Total revenue inclusive of sales tax & other income 725,176 671,232
Bought-in-material & services 416,302 374,614
308,873 100.00% 296,618 100.00%
Wealth Distributed
To Employees
Salaries, wages, benefils & related 62,320 20.18% 55,368 18.67%
cost
To Government
Income tax, sales tax & workers' fund 73,026 23.64% 890,789 30.61%
To Providers of Capital
Dividend to share holders 21,000 6.80% 18,000 6.07%
Markup on borrowed funds 4,030 1.30% 57 1.79%
Retained in Business
Depreciation & retained profit 148,497 48.08% 127,143 42.86%
auniu?z 100.00% 296,618 100.00%
Wealth Distribution 2017 Wealth Distribution 2016
20%
43% 19%
48%
8% 30%
8%
W To Employees B To Genvernemand Il To Employses B To Gonvesrnimaent
0O Te Privdders of Capital [ Retained in Business 0O To Providers of Capitsl [ Retwined in Businoss
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GRAPHIC ILLUSTRATION
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DIRECTORS REPORT

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 55"Annual Report along with the audited
accounts of the company. The Report covers your company's activity for the year ended June
30, 2017 and describes its financial, social and environmental performances.

Operating Results

Your company has continued good progress with Turnover climbing to a new record level of Rs
724.39 million and Net Sales climbing to Rs 659.94 million which is an increase of 7.07% and
7.54% respectively compared to last fiscal year. Exercise Books section and Pro Labels led the
way with an increase of 2.23% and 13.41% respectively while Sensitized Paper and Photocopy
Paper continued their downward trend with sales falling by 5.23% and 11.86% respectively and
the reasons for this are explained later in the report.

Pro Labels section enjoyed another robust year of growth in terms of value and volume, and we
continue to invest aggressively in this segment due to very bright future growth prospects. The
self-adhesive label indusiry in Pakistan is still in a very nascent stage with per capita
consumption to be extremely low even in comparison to regional peers like India and
Bangladesh. We are confident that this will change very rapidly in the coming years and the
growth shown in the last few years will not only continue but it will get more aggressive as
companies start to focus more and more on higher quality packaging, especially in the FMCG
sector. As pioneers of this product in Pakistan we want to stay focused in this segment and
continue to invest so that we can get maximum gain from this growth opportunity, and also
solidify our leadership position as competition in this market is increasing tremendously.

Exercise Books had another good year with sales rising by 2.23% to Rs. 285 million.While the
increase is not very high, but it is very significant due to the fact that last year FBR removed the
Sales Tax zero rating on Exercise Books and gave it the exemption status which meant that the
entire 17% of Sales Tax had to be absorbed by us. This led to an increase of 17% in our cost of
production but we managed to mitigate this increase by shifting to slightly lower grade and
cheaper in cost paper and also by bringing further efficiencies in our production process. Due to
aggressive marketing and higher production we were also able to pass on a 5% increase in
prices and also managed to consolidate our sales. We had warned the shareholders last year
that this will be a very difficult year for Exercise books but by the grace of God we have been
able to overcome this hurdle. The government has also created a serious anomaly as finished
imported products will be charged zero sales tax while which will make our products
uncompetitive against any imports. We have pointed this grave anomaly out to the FBR and the
government but all our pleas have fallen on deaf ears.

Sensitized paper and Photocopy paper had a very disappointing year with sales falling by 5.23%
and 11.86% respectively. Slowing demand for Sensitized paper continues and this is not unique
to us but a worldwide phenomenon as in most countries this product is completely obsolete as
people no longer make manual drawings and have switched to plotter paper using large format
printers. In photocopy papers also we are now only supplying large width rolls and higher gsm
papers which are not normally available in the market as selling regular A4 paper has become a
very commodity item and not a very suitable line of business.

$5eh Annual Reporr 2007 16




@ PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

Financial Results

Your company showed significant improvement in financial terms with Net Profit before tax
growing by 16.76% and Profit after tax growing by 58.08%.Gross Profit decline by 0.54% which
was mainly due to the removal of the Sales Tax Zero rating on exercise books, but again this
was offset by improved margins in Pro Labels, and also Sensitized and Photocopy paper as we
reduced our costs. The main reason behind increase in Profit before Tax is due to certain losses
that we had to book last year so comparatively we saw an increase in the Profit. Lower taxation
is mainly due to the Tax credit that we received on the major investment in our new Gallus
machine for Pro Labels along with a slight lower rate of taxation.

June, 2017 June, 2016
Profit before taxation 73,058,801 62,572,331
Taxation {12,411,687) (24,206,645)
Profit after taxation 60,647,114 38,365,686

Dividend

The Board has already declared an interim dividend of 35% in the third quarter of this financial
year which has been paid to the shareholders that were on the books as per the announced
book closure. In addition the Board has also approved a final dividend of 20%.

Financial Reporting

Let us mention here that this Company's financial reporting is based on the approved
International Accounting Standards notified by the SECP and also comply with the requirements
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

Manufacturing and Operations
All our resources relating to the manufacturing facilities performed well and achieved positive
gains in efficiencies.

We are constantly modernizing and upgrading all our manufacturing facilities to stay well ahead
of the competition.

Corporate and Social Responsibility
Being a Public Limited company we realize that we have a responsibility to this country and its
people at large. In this respect we make donations to needy organizations.

Health

We are committed to demonstrate sound environmental performance by controlling the impact of
our operations and products on the environment and we further endeavour to comply with the
applicable environmental legislation, regulations and standards laid down for pollution control in
the country. Your company is determined to play a role in promoting a better and ecologically
friendly future in Pakistan.

The Board

Pakistan Paper Products Limited has an independent and objective Board, consisting of one
working and rest non-working Directors. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are
different and each has a clearly defined role profile.

55th Annwal Report 2017



% PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

+ We are pleased to report that your company has taken necessary steps to comply with the
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance as incorporated in the listing regulations of
the Karachi Stock Exchange.

¢ The financial stalements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of the operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

+ Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

¢+ Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.
In preparation of financial statements, International Accounting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, have been followed.

¢+ There is no significant doubt upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

¢+ The system of internal control is sound in design. The system is being continuously
monitored by Internal Audit and through other such monitoring procedures. The process of
monitoring internal controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further
strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system.

+ Detail about taxes is given in the notes to the accounts.

Board & its Committee meetings

¢+ During the year five (05) meetings of the Board of Directors (BOD), four (04) Audit Committee
(AC) meetings and one (01) HR &R Committee meeting were held. Attendance by each
Director are as under:

Name of Directors BOD Meetings AC Meetings HR&R Meeting
Mr. Mohammed Ali Sayeed” -

Mr. Abid Sayeed

Mr. Abbas Sayeed

Dr. Asadullah Sayeed

Mrs. Muleika Sayeed

Mr. Zahid Dada

Mr. Shoaib Ahmed Khan (MNIT Nominee)
Mr. Sayeed Imran®

=M b s W
LR S

The Directors who could not attend the Board & Committee Meetings and requested for leave
were duly granted leave of absence from the meeting by the Board/Committees in accordance
with the law.

*The election of directors was held on 11.05.2017. Mr. Sayeed Imran elected in Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the company w.e.f May 11" 2017 in place of Mr. Muhammad Ali Sayeed,
who completed his tenure and did not offer himself for re-election due to health reasons.

Directors’ Training Program

Out of seven Directors of the Company, three Directors are exempt from such certification as
they duly meet the exemption criteria given in the Code. One has obtained certification under
Directors’ Certification Training Program in 2016. Therefore, half of the Board is qualified either
meet the criteria of DTP and or meet the exemption criteria as per Code.

Statement of Code of Conduct
The Board has adopted the statement of Code of Conduct. All employees are informed of this
staternent.
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Material Changes
There have been no material changes and the company has not consciously entered into any
commitment that will affect its financial position.

Code of Business Principles

As a leading Paper converting company, reputation for high ethical standards is central to
business success. Code of Business Principles already developed and communicated and
acknowledged by each Director and employee of the company.

Future Outlook and Challenges

Through constant BMR and addition to capacity in all areas of production, your company is well
poised for the future and ready to take on additional market demand for its products as required.
The packaging industry of Pakistan is continuing to grow and expand which is creating more
opportunities for Pro Labels which is currently the fastest growing segment of the company. We
are facing a lot of unhealthy competition in this area where new entrants are reducing their prices
drastically in order to gain market share which is of course a very unhealthy way of doing
business as the whole industry in the end is on the losing end. The management is well aware
of these issues and is trying to focus on areas of higher quality and better product mix in order to
mitigate these problems.

The other main area of concern is again the weakening of the Pak Rs against the US Dollar as a
majority of our raw materials are imported, hence our margins are severely affected by this.

Audit Committee

Comprises of three members from the Board, all are non-executive director including the
chairman of the audit committee. The Board of Directors has set out terms of reference for the
audit committee. The audit committee reviews the annual and quarterly financial statements,
internal audit reports and holds its meeting prior to the Board meetings. The committee manages
adequately the system of internal control through internal audit department and review
effectiveness of operational and financial control.

Human Resource Committee

The Committee consists of three members from the Board which all are non-executive directors
including the Chairman. The Committee reviews and formulates the HR & management policies
of the company. The Committee is also responsible for the remuneration of employees and
ensures that it is aligned with the Company’s business strategy and long-term interests

Operating and Financial Data
Operating and financial data and key ratios of the company for last six years are annexed.

Auditors
The Board recommends the appointment of M/s. Farug Ali & Co as auditors for the next financial
year.

Pattern of Shareholding
A statement of the pattern of shareholding of certain class of shareholders as at June 30, 2017
whose disclosure is required under the reporting framework is included in the report.

I. During the year Mr. Abbas Sayeed (Director Pakistan Paper Products Limited) gifted
=75000= ordinary shares of PPP to his wife Mrs. Nusser Abbas Sayeed.
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Il.  Mrs. FaizaHaswary w/o Dr. Asadullah Sayeed (Director Pakistan Paper Products Limited)
gifted =103200= ordinary shares of PPP to her daughter Ms. Maha Sayeed.

lll.  Mr. Sayeed Imran elected as director of the company by the shareholders in its Extra
Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on Thursday 11" May 2017. As per requirement
of clause 59 of Aricle of Association of the company Mr. Sayeed Imran purchased
=2500= ordinary shares of PPP.

The shareholding details of directors and their spouse and minor children along with associated
companies, executives, individuals, public sector companies & corporations, Banks, DFIS.
NBFIS, Insurance Companies, Modarabas Joint Stock Companies, Mutual Funds & others along
with pattern of shareholding is annexed.

Other than the above the Directors, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their
spouse and minor children have made no transaction of company's shares during the year, and
also confirm that directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

Acknowledgements

The Directors are grateful to the valued customers for their continued support. They also
appreciate the support received from Company's bankers, shareholders and other stakeholders
who continue to repose trust in your company. In addition the Directors also record their sincere
appreciation for the cooperation received from the Regulators Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and Pakistan Stock Exchange-PSX (formerly Karachi Stock
Exchange)

All the employees of the company have put in a real teamwork and the results are evident.
Directors congratulate all he employees for their continued performance.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
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CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Dated: September 18 2017
Karachi
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained
in Regulation No.5.19 of Listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange (formerly Karachi Stock

Exchange Ltd) for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a
listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1. The company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and
directors representing minority interests on its board of directors. At present the board includes:-

' Category Names
Independent Director Mr. Zahid Dada
Executive Director Mr. Abid Sayeed
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Abbas Sayeed

Dr. Asadullah Sayeed

Mrs. Muleika Sayeed

Mr. Sayeed Imran

Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Khan (N.I.T Nominee)

The independent directors meets the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1.(b) of the
CCG.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding
companies where applicable).

3. All the resident directors of the company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a Broker of
a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. The election of directors was held on 11.05.2017. Mr. Sayeed Imran elected in Extra Ordinary
general Meeting w.e.f May 117 2017 in place of Mr. Muhammad Ali Sayeed who completed his
tenure. Whereas no casual vacancy on the board arisen during the year ended June 30, 2017.

5. The company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

6. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment of the CEO, other executive and non-executive directors, have been taken by the
board/shareholders.
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8. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the board for this purpose and the board met at least once in every quarter.
Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated
at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

9. The board arranged an orientation course for its directors during the year to apprise them of
their duties and responsibilities. The majority of directors have obtained certification and or
exempt as required under the clause 5.19.7 of the CCG and are familiarized on their
responsibilities with the CCG.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment.

11. The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of
the CCG and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before
approval of the board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the company
other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14. The company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the
CCG.

15. The board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises three members of whom all are
non-execulive directors including Chairman of the committee. An independent director has been
included in the Audit Committee as required under the clause 5.19.16(a) of the CCG.

16. The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval
of interim and final results of the company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference
of the committee have been formed and advised to the committee for compliance.

17. The board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises three members,
of whom all are non-executive directors and the Chairman of the committee is an independent
director.

18. The Board has set up an effective Internal Audit function which is considered suitably
qgualified and expenenced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of
the Company.

19. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.
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20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21. The ‘closed period', prior to the announcement of interimffinal results, and business
decisions, which may materially affect the market price of company’s securities, was determined
and intimated to directors, employees and stock exchange(s).

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at
once through stock exchange(s).

23. The company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of
persons having access to inside information by designated senior management officer in a
timely manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names
of persons from the said list.

24. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

j El ' %
ABID SAYEED
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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(-88, KDA Scheme Me. 1, Telephone : [021) 34301966
FARUQ ALI & CO Moin  Kerser Reed, (o1 34301967
Q - Dpp: Hilirimll Huilnl, Keeachi : g;: itig:::g
. 'ERE COUNTANTS Emoil: inloe@lac.com.pk :
& CO. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS toul, Wlo@laciomal fon] uamses

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
On the statement of compliance with the best practices of code of corporate governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of
Corporate Governance (‘the Code’) prepared by the Board of Directors (“the Board’) of Pakistan Paper
Products Limited (*the Company’) for the year ended 30 June 2017 to comply with the requirements of
Rule 5.19 of the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility 15 1o review, to the extent where such comphiance can be objectively venified, whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code
and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review
15 limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared
by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board for their review and approval, its related party transactions
distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper
justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to
determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the yvear ended 30 June 2017,

Dated: .
Place: Karachi K_&’.\Q,L 1

Engagement Partner: Fasih-uz-Zaman CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

<
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AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED (‘the
Company’) as at 30 June 2017 and the related profit and loss account. statement of comprehensive
income, statement of cash flows and statcment of changes in equity together with the notes forming
part thercof, for the vear then ended and we state that we have oblaincd all the intformation and
explanatnons which, to the best of our knowledge and beliet, were necessary tor the purposes of our
audit.

It 15 the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and mamtain a system of internal
control, and prepare and present the above said statement in conformity with the approved accounting
standards and the requirements of the repealed Companics Ordinance, 1984, Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these statements based on our auwdit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
above said statements are free of any material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test
basiz, evidences supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements, An audit also
includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as,
evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reazonable basis for our opimion and, after due venfication, we report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984,

b) N OUr OpInion--

1) the balance sheel and profit and loss account together with the notes thercon have
been drawn up in conformity with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are
in agreement with the books of accounmt and are further in accordance with
accounting policies consistently applicd;

1] the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s
business: and

11 the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the
year were in accordance with the objects of the Company:

(] it our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us,
the balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive inmcomee, statement of
cash flows and statement of changes in oquity topcther with the notes formang part thereof
conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. and. give the
information required by the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so reguired
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 Junc
2017 and of the profit, its comprehensive income, cash Mlows and changes in equity for the
yvear then ended: and

i) in our ommnion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 { XV
ol 1980) was deducied by the Company and deposited in the Cenitral Zakat Fund established
under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

Dated: :
Place: Karachi (—GS\JJ-«\Q}‘ 25

Engagement Partner: Fasih-uz-Zaman CHARTERED ACCOUNTAN
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

MNotes
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capital
8.000.000 (2016: 8.000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 4
Revenue reserves 5
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 6
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Delerred tax liability - Net 7
Delerred liability for stafl gratuity 8
Long term loans - Secured 9
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term loans 9
Short term borrowings - Secured 10
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 11
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 12
ASSETS
MOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 13
Long term deposits 14
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock in trade 15
Trade debts - Unsecured, considered good 16
Advances and other receivables 17
Trade doposits and short lerm prepayments 18
Cash and bank balances 19

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial staterments.

2017 2016
-—- (Rupees) it
80,000,000 80,000,000
80,000,000 60,000,000
327,481,490 284,545,944
387,481,490 344 545 944
212,965,594 215,813,740
43,990,209 38,466,416
11,222,496 11,137 484
78,326,300 32,121,000
25,237,800 19,149,540
258,090 963,441
84,315,188 60,988,695
109,809,079 81,101,676
843,795,168 723,186,260
509,842 544 416,287,709
908,232 673,054
2,598,548 3,405,040
131,056,625 117,498,197
118,248,761 108,125,822
68,357,657 37.629,088
2,609,392 733,852
10,175,411 38,833,698
333,044 392 306,225,497
843,795,168 723,186,260

)it

ABID SAYEED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

35eh Annuwal Reporr 2007 26




&

PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Turmover
Sales lax, discounts and sales return
Sales - Net

Cost of sales

Other operating income / (loss)

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses
Workers' profit participation fund
Workers' welfare fund

Operaling profit

Finance cost

Profit before taxation

Taxation - Net

Profit for the year

Eamings per share - Basic and diluted

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(PR

,.f o , }:f; ,/:;}'—}
2

ABBAS SAYEED
CHAIRMAN

MNotes

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

2017 2016
S [ 117111} [—
724,393,700 676,554,925

(64,458,483) (62,882,458)
659,935,217 613,672 467
(535,264,235) (488,329,974)
124,670,982 125,342 493
781,858 (5,322,715)
(28,014,279) (32,948,298)
(18,161,462) (11,959,056)
(3,923,674) (3,392,850)
(1,490,996) (1,891.822)
(46,590,411) (50,192,026)
78,862,429 §9,827,752
(5,803,628) (7,255,421)
73,058,801 62,572,331
(12,411,687) (24,206,645)
60,647,114 38,365,686
10.11 6.39

JHisige

ABID SAYEED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Itermns that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability

Related deferred tax

Incremental depreciation transfer from surplus

on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Surplus realized on disposal of assels
Related deferred tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial stalements,

Y e
s — e
A

ABBAS SAYEED
CHAIRMAN

MNotes

2017 2016
e (Rupees)

60,647,114 38,365,686
628,980 (1,826,150)
(188,654) 566,107
440,286 (1,260,043)
4,056,142 4,653,553
12,639 (406,443)
(1,220,635) (1,627,328)
2,848,146 2,619,782
63,935,546 39,725,425

Jhidget

~ ABID SAYEED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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STATEMEMT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operalions

Payments for:
Income tlaxes
Gratuity
Finance cost

MNel cash inflows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure
Long term deposits
Sale proceeds against disposal of fixed assels
Income from deposit accounts

Net cash (outflows) f inflows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

MNet movements in long term loan

Dividend paid
Net cash inflows / (outflows) from financing activities
MNet (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial stalements.

; .ol
y TS
.r', /‘éf . i
e

ABBAS SAYEED
CHAIRMAN

Notes

28

81

13
14
13.3
22

2017 2016
=e==e=eeemeee (RUpEES)
91,883,070 116,466,776
(28,471,261) (32,457 ,887)
(1,025,397) (379,920)
(4,718,448) (6,755.513)
57,677,964 76,873,458
(122,474,823) (5.830,358)
(235,178) (114.214)
39,000 12,908,675
756,859 474614
(121,914,142) 7.438,717
52,293,560 (20,838,048)
(16,008,318) (21,194 655)
36,285,242 (42,032,703)
(27,950,936) 42,279,470
37,870,257 (4.409,213)
9,919,321 37,870,257

it

ABID SAYEED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

55th Annual Repors 2007 29




&

PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

Balance as on 1 July 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2016

Other comprehensive income - Net' of tax

Remeasurement of defined
benefit liability - Net of {ax

Transfer rom surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and eguipment - MNet of tax

Transactions with owners
Interim dividend @ Rs.3/- per share

Balance as at 30 June 2016

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2017

Other comprehensive income - Net of tax
Remeasurement of defined
benefit liability - Net of tax

Transfer irom surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment - Net of tax

Transactions with owners
Interim dividend @ Rs.3.5/- per share

Balance as at 30 June 2017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Issued, REVENUE RESERVES
“:“T:Bd General Unappropriated Total Tn:al
ANGPACUP | reserves profit reserves oy
share capital
(Rupees)
60,000,000 143,900,000 118,920,519 262820519 322820519
s - 38,365 686 38365686 38,365 686
- (1.260.043) (1,260.043)  (1,260,043)
- - 2.619.782 2.619.782 2,619,782
- - 39,725.425 39.725.425 39,725,425
- - {18,000,000) (18,000,000} (18,000,000)
60,000,000 143,900,000 140,645,944 2845455844 344545944
60,647.114 60,647,114 60,647,114
- 440,288 440,288 440,286
- - 2,848,148 2,848,146 2.848.146
- 63,935,546 63,935 546 63,935,546
{21.000,000) (21.000.000)  (21.000,000)
60,000,000 143,900,000 183,581,490 327.481,490 387,481,490

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statoments.

ABBAS'SAYEED
CHAIRMAN

Hliduge.

ABID SAYEED
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated and domiciled in Pakistan as a private limited company in July 1962. It
was converted into public company and listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange (now Pakistan Stock
Exchange) in July 1964. The registered oifice of the company is situated at D-58, SITE, Estate Avenue,
Karachi, 75700. Tha main business activity of the Company is the production and sale of exarcizse books,
pro-labels and sensitized papers.

1

2
2.1
22
2.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

During the year, the Companies Act 2017 (the Act) has been promulgated, howewver, Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its circular number 17 of 2017 dated 20 July
2017 communicated Commission's decision that the companies whose financial year closes on or
before 30 June 2017 shall prepare their financial statements in accordance with the provisions of
the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, Approved
accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued
by the International Accounling Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting
Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are
notified under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under
the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives
of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except the
obligation in respect of gratuity fund which is measured at present value.

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to financial statements

2.3.1 New standards, interpretations and amendments

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statemenls are
consistent with those of the previous financial year except that the Company has adopted
the following accounting standards and amendments which became effective for the
current year:

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities and 1AS 27 Separate Financial Statements: Investmenl Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception (Amendmeant)

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operation (Amendment)
1AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)

IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarification of
Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amorization (Amendment)

IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture: Bearer Plants
{Amendment)
IAS 27 - Separate Financial Statements: Equity Method in Separate 'Financial Statemenis
(Amaendment)
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232

233

The adoption of the above accounting standards did nol have any effect on the financial
statements.

Annual improvements

IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
methods of disposal

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing contracts

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Applicability of the offsetting disclosures to
condensed interim financial statements

IAS 19 - Employee Benefits - Discount rate: regional market issue

IAS 34 - The adoption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards
and interpretations does not have any material effect on the financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that
are not yet effective

The following amendments and interpretations with respect o the approved accounting

standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date

(annual
periods
Standard or interpretation beginning
on or after )
IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share Based Payment
Transactions (Amendments) 1 January 2018
IFRS 10 - Consaolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Mot yet finalized

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment) 1 January 2017

IAS 12 - Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
losses (Amendments) 1 January 2017

IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - (Amendmentls) 1 January 2018

IAS 40 - Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendment) 1 January 2018

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018

P 7
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2.4

2.5

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainly over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

The Company expects that the adoption of the above amendments and interpretation of the
standards will not affect the Company's financial statements in the period of initial
application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by 1ASE which are yet to be notified by
the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective date
{annual
periods
beginning
Standard or interpretation on or after )
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 1 January 2018
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 - Leases 1 January 2019
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environmant in which the Company operatas. The financial statements are presonted in
Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency and have been
rounded off 1o the neares! rupee.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management o make judgments, estimales and assumplions that
aftect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and
expenses. Actual results may dilfer from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptlions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the pericd in which the estimate is revised and in any futlure periods
alfected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in

applying accounting policies that have the most significant affect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements are as follows:

2.5.1 Operating fixed assets, revaluation and depreciation

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful lives and residual
values used in the calculation of depreciation. The estimates of revalued amounts of
revalued assels are based on valuations carried out by a professional valuer, Further,
where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible
impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the
technical resources available with the Company. Any change in the estimates in the future
might affect the carrying amount of respective item of propery. plant and equipmant, with
corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.
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2.5.2 Trade debts and amount due from related parties

The Company reviews its doubtful debts at each reporting dates to access whethar
provigion should be recorded in the profit and loss account. In parlicular, judgmeont by
management is required in the estimates of the amount and timing of fulure cash flows
when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on
assumptions about a number of factors and actual resulls may dilfer, resulting in future
changes to the provisions,

2.5.3 Income tax

In making the eslimates for income tax currenily pavable by the Company. the
management considers the current income tax laws and the decisions of appellate
authorities on cerain issues in the past.

2.5.4 Stock in trade

The Company reéviews the net realizable value (NRY) of stock in trade to assess any
diminution in the respective carrying values. Any change in the estimates in future years
might affect the carmying amounts of stock in trade and corresponding affect in profit and
loss account of those future years. Net realizable value is delermined with respect to
estimated selling price less estimated expenditures to make the salas,

2.5.5 Stores and spares

The Company reviews the net realizable value (MRV) and impairment of stores and spare
parts to assess any diminution in the respective carrying values and wherever required
provision for NRV / impairment is made. The calculation of provision involves the use of
estimates with regards to future estimalted use and past consumption along with stores and
spares holding period.

2.5.6 Staff retirement benefits
Certain actuarial assumptions have been used as disclosed in these financial statements

(note B8) for the actuarial valuation of unfunded gratuity scheme. Changes in these
assumptions in future years may effect the liability under this scheme in those years.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The signilicant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial
statemenis are set outl below, These accounting policies have been applied consistently unless otherwise

staled.
31

Property, plant and equipmeant

ltern of property, plant and equipment is recognized as assel when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the company and its cost 10 the company
can be measured reliably.

An item of properly, plant and equipment, which qualifies for recognition as an assel, is initially
measured at its cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
item. Subsequent to initial recognition items of property. plant and equipment are carried at a
ravalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
made with sulficient regularity such that the carrying amount does nol differ materally from that
which would be determined using the fair value at the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such fixed assels is credited to Surplus on

revaluation of lixed assels account, except lo the exlent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for
the same assel previously recognized as an expense, in which case the increase is credited (o the
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3.2

3.3

3.4

iIncome statement 10 the extent ol the decrease previously charged. A decrease In Carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of fixed assets is charged as an expense to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, held in the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account relating to
same or other assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when il is probable that fulure economic benefils associated with the item will
flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income slalement during the financial year in which they are
incurred.

Capital work in process is stated at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Depreciation on
these assels, on the same basis as other property assels, commences when the assels are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or revaluation of assets, other than leasehold
land and capilal work-in-process, over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance
method, on the basis of rates specified in Nole 13. The deprecialion for assels acquired or
disposed of during the year is charged from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal of
such assets respoctively.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assels.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in income.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the stores and spares to their present localion and
condition. Cost signifies the weighted average cost. Average is calculated as each additional
shipment is received.

Stock in trade
Stock in trade is valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value.

Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour and those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to the present location and condition. It excludes
borrowing costs. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Average is calculated as
each additional shipment is received.

Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
cost of completion and cost necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

Trade debts

Trade debls and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the eflective interest rate method, if applicable, less provision for impairment,
it any. A provision for impairment is established where there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Trade debts and receivables are written off when considered irrecoverable.

A 7
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Investments

Invesiments acquired principally for the purpose of generaling a profit from short term fluctualtion
in price or dealers margin are classified as held for trading. Such investments are initially
recaognized on a trade-date basis and are initially measured al cost being the fair value of the
consideration given excluding income laxes imposed on such transactions, Transactions costs
associated with the acquisition of held for trading investments is expensed in the income
statement.

After initial recognition, investments held for trade are re-measured al each balance sheoet dale at
fair value axcluding the transaction cost that may be incurred on sale or other disposal. Gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value of held-for-trading investment are included in net profit or
loss for the period.

For investiments in gquoted marketable securities, fair value is determined with reference to Stock
Exchange quoted market prices al the close of business on balance sheet date,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and chegues in hand, balances with banks, term
deposits with original maturity period of three months or less, short term running finances and
temporary book overdrawn balances.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any,
and subsequently measured at amortized cost,

Staff retirement benefits

a) The company operales an approved Provident Fund (defined contribulion) scheme
applicable to all employees. Monthly contributions are made by the company and the
employees equally in accordance with the fund's rules. The company has no further
payment obligations once the contfributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognized as an assel 1o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payment is available.

b} The company operates a defined benefit plan comprising a funded gratuity schame
covering all permanent employees, under which benefits are paid on cessation of
employment subject to a minimum qualifying period of service. An approved gratuity fund
trust is established for the management of the gratuity obligation of the company. Annual
contributions are made to the fund based on actuarial recommendations, The actuarial
valuations are carried outl using Projected Unit Creditl Melhod. Remeasurement charge
which comprises of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
intarast) are recoanized immediatelv in other comorehansive income.

Taxation

Income lax expense represents the sum of the tax currenily payable and deferred tax. It also
includes adjustments where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years
arising from assessmeants framed during the year for such yvears.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the financial statements because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tlax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

A 7
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wetarrad tax haDnnes are genarally recognized 1or all taxaple temporary aiferences and aeterrea
tax assets are rocognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profitls will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assels and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
reasult of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the cbligation; and the amount has been reliably measured.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expectad to be requirad to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valua of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in provision due to passage of time is
recognized as interest expensea.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods
and services in the ordinary course of the Company’'s activities. Revenue is recognized as fallows:

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized upon passing of title to the customers, which generally
coincides with physical delivery.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the company’'s balance sheet when the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument., A financial asset is
derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired or transferred and the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownearship. A financial liability is removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the
financial assots and financial liabilities are taken to income currently.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Al each balance sheal date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assels have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price
and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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Whenever an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant assel is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.14 Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in
Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's funclional and presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are franslated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the income statements.

3.15 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized in the company’s flinancial

statements in the period in which the dividends are paid or approved by the company's
shareholders.

2017 2016
(Rupees) —=smmememeue
4 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
578,000 (2016: 578,000) Ordinary shares
of Rs.10/- each fully paid in cash 5,780,000 5.780,000
172,000 (2016: 172,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-
each issued for consideration (property) other than cash 1,720,000 1,720,000
5,250,000 (2016: 5,250,000) Ordinary shares
of Rs. 10/- each issued as fully paid bonus shares 52,500,000 52,500,000
60,000,000 80,000,000

4.1 As al year end 680,270 (2016: 680,270) ordinary shares of the Company are held by an
associated undertaking M/s. Management & Enterprises (Privale) Limited.
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2017 2016
(Rupees)
5 REVEMUE RESERVES
General resernve 143,900,000 143,900,000
Unappropriated profit 183,581,480 140,645,944

327,481,490 284 545,944

6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land 188,617,362 188,617,362
Surplus on revaluation of items other than leasehold land 24,348,232 27,196,378
212,065,554 215,813,740

Properly, plant and equipment owned by the Company has further been revalued on 28 April 2014 by
independent revaluer M/s KG Traders (Private) Limited using the prevailing market value being the basis
of revaluation. The further surplus arising from revaluation carried out in 2014 was Rs. 94.598 million,
which was added to the carrying amount of surplus. In accordance with section 235(2) the surplus on
revaluation has been applied to set off the deficit arising from revaluation of other assets, The
incremental depreciation charged on these assets has been transferred to accumulated profit in
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Ordinance 1984, The balance in the surplus on
revaluation of fixed assels account is not available for distribution amongst the shareholders neither as
dividend nor as bonus under seclion 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Movemenl in the account of
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is as follows:

Surplus on revaluation off
lems other

Leaschold

i than leasehold Total
Land
B 1 1 111 1L el I s
Surplus as at | July 2015 188.617.362 29816, 160 218,433,522
Realized on disposal of fixed asscts inct of tax) - 272317 272317
Incremental depreciation (net of 1ax)
transfer to unappropriated profit - (2. 892.00549) (2 892.099)
Surplus on 30 June 2016 188,617,362 27,196,378 215.813.740
Realized on disposal of lixed assets (net of tax) - (B.B47) (E.847)
Incremental depreciation (et of tax)
transfer to unappropriated profit - {2.839,299) (2,830, 2099)
Surplus as at 30 Junc 2017 188,617, 362 24,348,212 212,965,590
2017 2016
(Rupees)
7 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - Net
Deferred tax lability arising due to:
- accelerated tax depreciation 40,087,506 33,524,344
revaluation of assets 7,304,470 8,430,877
47,391,976 41,955,221
Deferred tax assetl arising due to:
- provision against gratuity (3,366,749) (3,452, 620)
- provisions stock in trade (35,018) (36,185)
(3,401,767) (3.488,805)
43,990,209 38,466,416
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DEFERRED LIABILITY FOR STAFF GRATUITY

Opening balance

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

Charge for the year

Payments during the year

Closing balance

8.2

8.1

2017 2016
e (Rupees) ——=--mmmmmmmn
11,137,484 8,253,851
(628,980) 1,826,150
1,739,389 1,437,403
12,247,893 11,517.404
(1,025,397) (379.920)
11,222 496 11,137,484

The amount recognized in the balance sheet, based on the recent actuarial valuation carried out by M/s.
SIR Consultants (Private) Limited on 6 July 2017, are as follows:

8.1 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

8.2

8.3

8.4

Balance as at 1 July
Charge for the year

Remeasurement (gain) / loss recognised

in other Comprehensive income
Benelits paid

Balance as at 30 June

Charge for the year recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost
Mel interest

Charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses
Selling expenses

Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate per annum

Expecled rate of eligible salary increase in fulure years per anr
Salaries increase rate per annum

8.2

8.3

11,137,484 8,253,851
1,739,389 1,437,403
{628,980) 1,826.150
(1,025,387) (379.920)
11,222,496 11,137,484
969,082 711,653
770,297 725,750
1,739,389 1,437,403
1,023,029 1,006,182
499,313 431,221
217,047 -
1,739,389 1,437,403
2017 20186
8.00% 7.25%
10.00% 17.00%
B8.00% 7.25%
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8.5 Experience adjustment

2 20 T 2 ETTE]
ST o017 | T | i I TN | 1
-------------------------------------- L
Diefined benefit l"l""it:-l.['iillll 11222496 11.137.484 ®.251 851 6,507,136 4,003,738
Fair value of plan assets - - - -- --
Metl delined bemefit liability 11,222 4% 11,137 484 ®.251 E51 6,507,136 4,663,735
Remeasurement { gaimlf loss on obligation 1O2E DED) 1. 826,150 439,592 Q60,323 GAS 519
Remeasurement { ganlf loss on plan assets - - - - - -
(62X DXy 1.826.150 439 592 O} 323 HGASS1Y9
B.6 Sensitivity analysis
D e | [l L -1 | I
Particulars PYIDBO Percentage PYIDBO Percentage
{Rupees) change {Rupeesy change
Current liabilivy 11,222 496 11.137.484
+ 1% Discount rate 10,355,188 (7.73%) 10,265,201 (7.81%)
1% Discount rate 12,219,251 B.BE% 12,137,784 B.98%
+1 %% Salary increase rate 12,263,794 D2R% 12,173,934 931
-19% Salary increase rate 10,301,357 (B.21%) 10,221,602 (R.22%)
+10% Withdrawal rates 11,131,267 (0.81%) 11,118,615 (0. 17%)
105 Withdrawal rates 11,290,585 06 1% 11,157,012 0. 184
| Year Mortality age set back 11.223,. 783 0] 9% 11. 138,503 0,01 %
| Year Mortality age set forward 11.221.213 (0,00 %) 11,136,377 (000 %5

8.7 Maturity profile
Undiscounted payments

2017 2016
Particulars srrmsmnsmmrmnes (RUPEES) meeensmarmmanns
Year 1 918,133 Q04,018
Year 2 1,026,293 895,638
Year 3 1,055,857 1,073,511
Year 4 1,101,485 1,010,121
Year 5 679,826 1,034,737
Year 6 to Year 10 5,407,469 4,555,874
Year 11 and above 15,621,090 14,173,063

8.8 Risks associated with defined benefit plans
Investment risk:

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus
creating a shortfall in the funding objectives.

Longevity risk:

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is
measured at the plan level over the entire retiree population.
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10

Salary increase risk:

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary.
The risk arises when the aclual increases are higher than expectalion and impacts the liability
accordingly.

Withdrawal risk:

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk 1o the
benefil obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

2017 2016
(Rupees) -
LONG TERM LOANS - Secured
Bank Al-Habib Limited - Term finance
Opening balance 51,270,540 72,108,588
Acquired during the year 72,654,000 -
123,924,540 72,108,588
Repayments during the year (20,360,440) (20,838.048)
103,564,100 51,270,540
Current portion shown under current liabilities (25,237 ,800) (19,149,540)
78,326,300 32,121,000

The term linance facilities have been obtained from Bank Al-Habib Limited for acquiring machineries. The
facilities carry mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2016: 6 months KIBOR
plus 1.75% per annum) payable monthly installments. The facilities availed is re-payable in 60 equal
monthly instalments starting from the date of respective disbursements. These facilities are secured by
way of first specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery for Rs. 59.48 million and Rs. 80.240
million respeclively. Further, these are secured by equitable mortgage over industrial property bearing
plot no. D-57 & D-58 at SITE, Karachi registered with SECP for Rs. 169.40 million. Each facility is
repayable in sixty equal monthly instalments.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured

Bank Al-Habib Limited - Running finance 256,090 963.441

The Company enjoys short term finance facilities from Bank Al-Habib Limited comprising running finance
up to Rs. 60 million (2016: Rs.60 million), Letter of Credit (Sight-Foreign) for Rs.10 million (2016: Rs.10
million), Letter of Credit (Usance-Foreign) for Rs.10 million (2016: Rs.10 million), acceptance - Sub limit
of LC sight foreign for Rs.10 million (2016: Rs.10 million) at Nil margin and Letter of Guarantee for Rs.5
million (2016: Rs.5 million). The finance is secured against registered hypothecation charge over
movables of the Company each for Rs.30 million, registered hypothecation charge over movables and
receivables of the Company for Rs. 70 million, import documents consigned in the name of Bank Al-
Habib Limited in case of sight LC, accepted drafts / trust receipts in case of usance LC, counter
guarantee in case of LG's and equitable mortgage over industrial property bearing No. D-57 and D-58,
SITE, Karachi registered with SECP for Rs. 169.40 million. Further, a promissory note for Rs.72.066
million has been issued in favour of Bank Al-Habib against short term running finance. The running
finance facility carries mark-up of 3 months KIBOR plus 2% while other facility carries mark-up as per
bank’s schedule of charges.

55th Annual Repore 2007 42




@ PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

2017 2016
(Rupees)
11 CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Trade creditors 1.1 51,182,102 31,411,607
Advance from customers 451,325 2,005,618
Accrued expenses and other payables 3,881,220 2,594,719
Accrued mark up on running finance 681,524 30,730
Accrued mark up on long term loans 1,436,153 1.119475
Workers' profit participation fund 11.2 4,455,564 3,924,740
Workers' welfare fund 1,499,988 1,900,814
Unclaimed dividend 21,347,313 16,355,621
Sales tax payable - 1,645,361

84,315,189 60.988.695

11.1 Trade creditors include payable to an associated concermn M/s. Sayeed International amounting to
Rs.0.227 million (2016: Rs.0.134 million).

11.2 Workers' profit participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,924,740 4,023,890
Amount paid to the Fund Trustees (3,392,850) (3,492,000)
Amount deposited with government - -
531,890 531,890
Allocation for the year 3,923,674 3.392.850

4465564 3924740

12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
12.1 Contingencies

Bank guarantees issued on behalf of the Company %ﬂﬂﬂ 7,700,000

12.2 Commitments

Commitments under letter of credits 210,000 44,000
Post dated cheques issued in favour of
Collector of Customs Collectorate, Karachi 402,590 402.590

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment 497,026,396 416,287.709
Capital work-in-progress (Plant and machinery) 12,816,148 -=
509,842,544 416,287,709
AT/ REYALLATHIN AU ISIULATENR TEFREECIATHS Writtrn down
b
" An gt | July Aoib i Al @l 4 Jeine As gt | Jaly Faw ilhe LU R N Hats
FARTIOULARS Al germmaals = FEY [rreT—h = s an m
Hhlé dairing il 1oear 2T nna Fwar 2017 8 Jime 2617 r
|l=|r“.-| .........
L asahesdl Fand V5B Ol el = R i ] - * 150 O
Baskhimgs o beass busld lassl
Factory Db, T | 2. 280 E 197 6% L LT AT bR LT TR BN R 2T (11]
(e 80 55 00R 1 S P iall)X TR KB AR AT KT8 1.TH0 S §
Plaad sl rmackdngey T30 Ee I RS 0T VIR, 70T K LA2, TEA L 6T &1 S R 2 X i
Farmanure s fintmr b T 200,757 {4 00 MAT2 147, 100 i1 64 T, 10 i, 144 A ]
Fasitory s ofher ¢ gaspencne W (e AL AN . NI ARA Lap AN hge TI1T S HIE AT LETAYSS 1D
Elistri opapmss @l fising 1 0% ) KT RILEAT] 124 a0 LA T THLHTA I S} A LT N T
Csmgeatns 103 e BALNFT 114 0l & SR LI LR (21,4043 191,70} A N T STIIE W
Vb bes §4 na] 457 1380 TG TN i, 3P0, 0T 4 jid VN CFT.8) Vi 3 | BT AT ] WODE YTY M)
TOTAL AT ALE SN [N (IR 0001 £T69KNOFK A1, 000,004 i A I8 sL) AN T 0D 4T 0hn N
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10
10
10
15
M

........................................................................................ T e —
A MRS AL, TR AL ARE AT RS R PR LA Wrimics dawn
saduy
FPARTICULARS As .:.: :-I-u Asdditienn il Y Aw -;.JT‘J-& As :ql| :-I- P e— I;-:-:rh Lt .;Tl‘l'- - H‘-ilr
A Jmne D818
- an i ""J"‘“' L ————————
Leasahald Land 16000 CRCHE) 00 N0 W0 T 1400 0600
Huskdings om beaschodd Laesd
Fas oy 2 400,040 13 300 W.TI2240 ViR dIR RIS 49T 31,254 970
DHlllce LA LY L e L ASL DD 121004 I88 Kk STEERD 1376 150
Plant sndd machinory A0, TAS d 244 650 201000 I EDS LK 305000 LTI M ATLTH R L) TER [ES S8y &g}
Formtee aad (il T41.550 2B 545 TH 1135 TERED B M 14T, 100 a6X1a1%
Faovaw amd ooher equigomnt 2 AGE 956 LRI ] 1 OhE T 290 W4 LY LLLEL]D 2% 4%
Elgctasg oqquipragnt and hithag LSRN OAT 123100 1 A0S 137 I T4N Ta 012 ATOETS BoOE 26D
U emnpaie 1y WA 138,500 1062 W50 J LR 20HL 1% T E R L AN
Wichi hea I AR |57 #ed RO 4 R DN I 0m] 4357 T EI4ETY LAEST T 2A4LLIEY & Béd ¥T 0 T ORT
TOTAL 481 %] 5 528 N5H i 20610, 04 467 45T M50 T TRIETE [pE v NE T 16, 211 TN 51, I6d 604 ILLL:IT.'I'H
2017 2016
[ —— {Hums} [ ———
13.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 27,047,317 24,545,136
Administrative expenses 987,892 909,244
Selling and distribution expenses 816,478 768,388
28,851,487 26,222,768

13.2

Had there been no revaluation, the nel book value of the items of property, plant and equipment

would have been as follows:

Leasehold land 191,203 191,203
Building on leasehold land
- Factory 22,525,364 16,146,095
- Offica 3,341,658 3,358,392
Plant and machinery 231,525,101 156,980,821
Furniture and fixture 712,249 564,870
Factory and other equipment 3,400,538 3,103,954
Electric equipment and fittings 4,540,390 835,012
Computers 445,238 347,383
Vehicles 6,669,420 6,985,223
273,351,161 188,512,953

Revaluation of property,. plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment were further revalued at 8 April 2014 by K.G Traders (Pwvt) Lid
(an independent valuer) on market value basis as previously used. The revaluation has resulted in
further surplus of Rs.94.598 million which has been included in the book value of fixed assels and
credited (net of deferred tax) to surplus on revaluation of fixed assets. The incremental
depreciation net of deferred tax has been charged to the surplus on revaluation of fixed assel

account.

The whole amount of surplus has been included in the book value of related items of property,
plant and equipment and credited (net of deferred tax) to a surplus on revaluation of lixed assels
account. Part of surplus has been applied to set off the revaluation deficit of other assets in

accordance with section 235(2) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
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13.3 Detail of assets disposed off during the year:

PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

Particulars Cast ::;:'"::::T Book value | Sale proceeds ':J;n:":: Mode of disposal | Particulars of buyers
[ ——————— 1 | T ml R ———
Eleiric cquipmeent 25 WM} A5l 15,484 15,4535 Wonle ol
Computers LELLL]] 21,405 12,595 ERLL i, 555 Maegotial Hsn Chssder
Furniiure & flixte & {H} 1.5 205 (2935 Write ofl
Velicles
Asia Hero Matorcyele 15,000 6287 E713 LRLLL (2713 Company policy S.M Kamran Al
Hahib Motorcycle 25000 10459 14,5410 L XLL] (5.5401)) Company policy  Taj Al Khan
Unispue Motorcyele PAELL 10,767 14,213 240N AT6T  Company policy  Abstul Ikram
A6 June 2007 125,000 9.4 68,501 19000 {29,500
30 Jiwme 2016 20,610,000 IR0 18,755 8504 12,8675 (5 RN 129)
2007 2016
—memeemeeeee (RUpEES)
14 LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Deposit with CDC 12,500 12,500
Security deposits against fuel 231,000 231,000
Utility deposits 664,732 429,554
908,232 673,054
14.1 These deposits are interest free.
15 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw materials 102,241,352 94,112,637
Work in process 20,464,344 15,335,994
Finished goods 8,467,654 8,166,291
131,173,350 117,614,922
Provision for dead stock (116,725) (116,725)
131,056,825 117,498,197
15.1 Certain items of finished goods has been written down to net realizable value by Rs.Nil (2016:
Rs.0.778 million).
16 TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured, considered good

Due from customers

Due from associated concern - Sayeed International

Dwue from staff

118,234,972 108,109,437
11,400 15,256

389 1,129
118,248,761 108,125,822
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18

19

PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considered good
Advance to suppliers
Advance to staff
Advance against letter of credit
Advance income tax - Nel
Income tax refundable
Sales tax refundable

17.1

17.2

2017 2016
=== (Rupees) =

1,421,489 186.014
184,421 94_604

1,921 -
33,393,283 7.068.384
25,349,880 30,280,086

8,006,663 -
68,357,657 37,629,088

17.1 Advances to staff represent advance for business related expenses and is interest free.

17.2 Income tax refundable

Tax year 2011
Tax year 2012
Tax year 2015
Tax year 2016

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits
Prepaymenis

181

18.1 This includes earnest money of Rs.1.960 million. These are interest free.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand
Factory impreast
Cash at banks:
- Current accounts
- Deposit accounts

19.1

876,504 676,504
1,827,880 9,844,113
19,759,489 19,759,469
3.“3.“7 —
25,349,880 30,280,086
2,532,755 657,549
76,637 76,103
2,800,392 733,652
300,000 65,000
75,000 75,000
6,618,367 5.577.210
3,182,044 33.116.488
10,175,411 38,833,698

19.1 Deposit accounts carry mark-up ranging between 4.50% to 4.75% (2016: 4.25% to 5.00%) per

ANNLUIm.

19.2 Bank balances in deposit accounts are placed under intarest arrangements. The Company has

conventional banking relationships with all the banks.
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2017 20186
{Rupees) e
20 SALES - Net
Pro-labels 351,259,366 309,712,887
Exercise books 285,692,260 278,817,489
Ammonia paper 14,323,816 15,114,403
Plain paper 7,727,494 8.781,998
Printing 12,500 5710
Sensilized machine parts - 99,951
Waste paper 1,585,655 1,150,551
660,611,091 613,682,989
Sales discount (675,874) (10.522)
659935217 __613,672.467
The sales are net off with sales tax Rs.63.783 million (2016: Rs.60.846 million).
COST OF SALES
Opening stock of raw material 94,112,837 76.769 576
Purchases during the year 412,754,585 386,578,818
506,867,222 463,348,394
Closing stock of raw material (102,241,352) (94,112,637)
Raw materials consumed 404,625,870 369,235,757
Manufacturing overheads
Salaries, wages and other benefits 211 72,421,117 59,157 562
Depreciation 134 27,047 317 24,545,136
Stores and spares consumad 21.2 19,442,903 15,505,828
Fuel and power 7,881,089 8,287,635
Other manufaciuring expenses 4,556,666 4,661,730
Repairs and maintenance 3,005,339 2.821.814
Insurance expenses 1,398,409 1,191,785
Rent, rates and taxes 216,192 197,083
Telephone and trunk calls 99,048 a7.888
136,068,078 116,466,461
Manufacturing cost 540,693,948 485,702,218
Work in process - Opening 15,335,994 15,264,769
Work in process - Closing (20,464,344) (15.335,994)
(5,128,350) (71.225)
Cost of goods manufactured 535,565,598 485,630,993
Finished goods - Opening 8,166,261 10,865,272
Finished goods - Closing (8,467 654) (8,166,291)
(301,363) 2,698,981
535 264 235 488,329,974

21.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include a sum of Rs.2.138 million (2016: As.2.039 million) in

respect staff retirement benefits.
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2017 2016
(Rupees) --—————uv
21.2 Stores and spares consumed
Opening balance 3,405,040 2,013,765
Purchases during the year 18,636,409 16,897,103
22,041,449 18,910,868
Closing balance (2,598,548) (3,405,040)

19,442,903 15.505.828
22 OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS)

Income from financial assets
Interest on deposit accounts 221 756,859 474,614

Income from non-financial assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13.3 (29,501) (5,881.129)
Service income 54,500 83,800

781,858 (5,322.715)

22.1 This prefit is eamed from bank accounts under mark-up arrangements.

23 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff salaries and benefits 23.1 12,008,838 10,452,774
Chief executive's remuneration 5,043,459 4,904,209
Legal and professional fees 1,769,382 1,774,790
Traveling and conveyance 1,580,917 1,465 364
Repairs and renewals 1,151,170 906.800
Rent, rates and laxes 1,103,530 499 886
Depreciation 13.1 987,692 808,244
General expenses 839,601 B61.532
Charity and donation 23.3 571,692 696.983
Insurance expense 531,601 757.138
Stamp dulty 412,895 772,992
Auditor's remunearation 23.2 375,000 375,000
Stalionery and periodicals 282,872 205,729
Telephone charges 269,999 319,449
Advertisement expenses 270,000 308,300
Postage and telegrams 231,734 184,799
Software expense 202,166 38,131
Electric charges 180,266 200,403
Directors’ fees 115,000 105,000
Website designing and development 76,465 32,308
Provision for dead stock 15 - 116,725
Sales tax receivable written off - 7,060,742

014 32,948,258

23.1 Staff salaries and benefits include a sum of Rs.1.171 million (2016: Rs.1.103 million) in respect of
staff retirernent benefits.
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23.2 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee

Review of half-yearly condensed interim financial slatements
Review report on code of corporate governance

Provident fund audit fee

Workers' profit participation fund audit fee

23.3 Charity and donation

Anjuman Behbood-e-Samat-e-Atfal
(ABSA School and College for Deaf)

The Citizens Foundation

Rotary Club Karachi

Syed Alfalah Literacy Centre

Special Children Educational Institute

ORPHANS - Trust

Tauseef Memorial School

The Kidney Centre

Al-Madad Welfare Society

Madrasa Arabia Zeenat-ul-Quran

Others

2017 2016
{(Rupees)

300,000 300,000
50,000 50,000
15,000 15,000

5,000 5,000
5,000 5.000

375,000 375,000

250,558 300,000
80,000 80,000
12,114 8,906

- 25,000

- g97.882

- 15,195

- 170,000
8,042 =
10,397 -
10,581 -

571,692 696,983

23.3.1 Donations during the year include donation amounting to Rs.0.251 million (2016: Rs.0.300
million) to Anjuman Behbood-e-Samat-e-Atfal (ABSA School and College of Deaf). Mrs.
Muleika Sayeed a Director of the Company is the Honorary Treasurer of ABSA School and

College of Deat.

Except above, none of the donations were made 10 any donee in which a director or his

spouse had any interest at any time during the year.

24 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Staff salaries and benefits 241
Cartage and forwarding

Vehicle running expenses

Sales promolion

Depreciation 131
Other expenses

Advertisement and publicity

Insurance expenses

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance

Tender lees

Printing and stationery

Travelling and conveyance

6,130,334 5,585,539
3,029,074 2,208,133
1,062,845 1,320,690
894 488 786,840
816,478 768,388
516,348 457,552
306,695 80,000
249,223 588,993
124,841 133.229
28,240 -
2,900 6,030
- 7,042
- 6,620
13,161,462 11,959,056

24.1 Stalf salaries and benefits include a sum of Rs.0.402 million (2016: Rs.0.198 million) in respect of

staff retirement benefits.
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25

26

2017 2016
(Rupees)
FINAMCE COST
Mark-up on long term loan 4,029,614 5,317,188
Mark-up on short term running finance 873,484 1,470,584
Exchange loss 737,708 264 577
Bank and other charges 162,842 203,072
5,803,628 7.255.421
TAXATION - Net
Current lax
Current year 6,949,681 29,092,502
Prior year 126,907 (5.418)
Deferred tax
Relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary differences 6,575,951 (3,508,159)
Relating to changes in tax rates (1,240,852) (1.372,280)
5,335,099 (4,880.439)
12,411,687 24,206,645
26.1 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit for the year 73,058,801 62,572,331
Tax on accounting profit @ 31%: (2016: 32%) 22,648,228 20,023,146
Difference between depreciation rates (454,883) 5896977
Inadmissible expenses 1,539,418 7,679,795
Tax credit under section 61 and 658 of the Ordinance (9,080,625) {571.264)
Effect of reduction in tax rate (1.240,852) (1,372,280)
Tax effect of prior year 126,807 (5.418)
Tax effect of permanent diferences (1,126,407) (7.444.311)
12,411,686 24,206,645
Average tax rate 17% 39%

26.2 The income lax assessments of the Company deemed to have been finalized up to tax year 20186.
The return of income of the Company for Tax Year 2014 has been selected for tax audit through
computer balloting by Federal Board of Revenue on 14 September 2015 under section 214C of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Certain details and documents have been sought by Assistant /
Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue, which have been duly submitted. The proceedings are in
nroaraess.
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27 [EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted

28

29

Profit after taxation

Depreciation

Weighted average number of oulstanding shares in issue during the year

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

13.1

Provision for gratuity 8.1

Intérest income

Finance cost
Exchange loss

Provision for dead stock
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 13.3

Stock in trade
Trade debts

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares

Advances and other receivables
Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Increase /(decrease) in current liabilities

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Cash generated from operations
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short term borrowings - Secured

2017

60,647,114

----- (Rupees)

2016

38,365,686

——- (Number of shares)

27.1 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at year and.

6,000,000 6,000,000
(Rupees)

10.11 6.39
73,058,801 652,572,331
28,851,487 26,222,768

1,739,389 1.437.403

(756,859) (474,614)

5,065,820 6,990,844

737,708 264 577

= 116,725

29,501 5,881,129
806,494 (1,391,275)
(13,558,428) (14,715,305)
(10,120,939) (6,761,904)
(9,333,896) 9,943,727
(1,875,740) 8,202,228
17,249,632 18,178,142
91,893,070 116,466,776
10,175,411 38,833,698
(258,090) (963,441)
8,919,321 37,870,257
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30 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

31

32

hiel Excoutive Iirecinrs Excculives Taoviml
017 2016 2017 2016 2007 2016 2017 2006
mrmrmrmamrrersrsrsTErrarsrarsrsa e rerararernsrern nrmrnnrar | Hup'ﬂl mrmrrrmzETrarsrITETrIrTTarErETETETEITIESTETETIIETII RS AT R T,
Fae - - 115,00 1S, (0 -- -- [RERCC L&, )
MManupgerial remaune ration
anal allowainges 2515 (M) 2515 (WK - - 1600 268 (e R A1 M6, M6S 4,141,413
Provwident fund 211,250 Z11.250 e I 113,598 1 ey EREAD 325,148 A1 330
Medical expenses 1060, 708 71726 - - 158, 300 120024 259, 194 192,750
Haowse rent 1,140,744 1. 040,740 G AR N ARD A AR 1.774,544 1621 080
Remmbursable expenses I 2 5] T 1155 719 e s == e 1. 266017 1,155 730
5,254 704 5 115459 - . 2 S[VT 5% 2 3G K53 T.T62, 163 7,422 312
Number of persons 1 I 5 ] 2 2 B 2

The Chief Executive of the Company is provided with Company maintained car.

The Company has borne the telephone and ulility charges of the Chief Executive's residence.
Remuneration of Chief Executive does nol include amounts paid or provided for, if any, by associated
TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The related parties and associated undertakings comprise local associated companies, staff retirement
funds, directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties and associated

undertakings., other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, are as follows:

2017 20186
(Rupees)
Sales 109,681 70,480
Purchase 410,085 311,500
Rent paid 180,000 192,000
Company's and employees contributions to provident fund 3,842,858 3,800,042

The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties and associated
undertakings are entered into at arm's length determined in accordance with comparable uncontrolled
price method.

2017 2016
{(Numbers) -
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees at 30 June 1 l.'l?_ 114
Average number of employees during the year 115 108

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Operating segments are
reported in 2 manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). Segment performance is generally evaluated based on cerlain key performance indicators
including business volume and gross profit.

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis.
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33.1 The management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the
CODM that are used to make strategic and business decisions.

a) Exercise Books

This segment relates to the sale of exercise books.

b) Pro-labels
This segment relates to the sale of pro-labels.

c) Sensitized paper and others
This segment relates to sensitized paper and others

33.2 Segment information

Sepmonl revimsg
Coat of sales
[T proli
Rrgnernl o8 i
Aadimiprirainve cupcanes
Selbig i isbishulsm cipends
Fimange st
Wosrkoors' pedi paauicipation (s
Wk ors' wellarg ol
Uperating pnali
Uhited operating iodns /| low)
Proslit b Ranatson

Taxabon - Met

Prodlid alfter tavation

Exeroiur Baoks Frolabels (s Totsl
b1 2006 117 2614 2017 Bl 2017 b

T T e D ey (HUPEES) meamssmems _ eemmsane = (U | oo rommeaee ceranems (RIBPAELS o reaes
34 6 1ES FTH S T 1) 9 M M. 7] 2887 21650 46k 52610 AN T BILETLAET
{208 T3 LR (23R 100 AT (2R3 ERF HN (25 SR 25T (T TR ONY 19574 ®10% (R BdL1T] [EL e W R
b bEN 032 55,405,310 o0, 107527 B 50 B0 SETSAM 5577801 124 6T, Gol2 125342 491
(13,241,547 (17 S15,745) 111,925 79 [TEE YT FETTRIT (2948 2] 2 [P 112948 29%)
B261. 719 P 07 K40y (34850 9T (1054 TRE) RN e el W L) A2 {11959 84)
i 092 a4 [ s o [E AT (5874, TIR) (54,074 R4 4174 5807 T8 T.255 42100
1S 1%l 11,540,072 {207 604 (L1101, 726) 115 KT 210N {1925 674N LR R
PN TN (LA LA (WNT Bl L) TT} P37 Tédh 1A {0,590 82T}
(X977 148) 127 045, 1) 12250, 00 124l 35T TR 15 N7 RS (32 Vg i AT ALT AT
0.7 [0LETH IR BN 16 86 027 437 LR SR 6] =0 (R200AN) el LR BT 595 Dt
THI EAN 2332715
T AR s REATE AN
12411687 124 206, 05 )
607,114 AGS AN

33.3 Segment wise assets and liabilities are not being reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker,

34 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The following informaltion is based on financial statements of the Fund:

Size of the fund - Total assets

Percentage of investments made

Fair value of investments

2017 2016
Un-audited Audited
(Rupees)
69,958,784 62,000,242
96.90% 98.12%
67,792,713 60,836,080

34.1 The cost of above investments amounted to Rs. 31.317 million (2016: Rs.31.753 million).
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34.2

34.3

The break-up of fair value of vestments is:

017 2016 2017 2016
------ {Percentage) ------ et | L4 1] |1 ) It
Delence saving cerlificates B.12% 6. 32% 5,505,758 1.844 975
Certificates of investments T6.96% 76.33% 52,170,424 46,435,404
Short term investments 13.57% 13.504% 9,199,260 2.213.,702
Saving account 1.35% 3 B4% 917,274 2,338,999
100% [ 67,792,713 6. 836,080

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section 227 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1884 and the rules formulated for this purpose

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

3541

35.2

Financial risk management
Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing nsk, and the
Company’s management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company’s risk management framework. The Board of Directors is responsible for developing
and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of shareholders value.
The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by
the Company, to set appropriate nsk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s aclivities. The Company aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other patty to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any
collateral. Concentration of credil risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in
similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economics, political or other
conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's
performance o developments alfecting a parlicular industry.
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35.3

Exposure to credit risk

In summary, the maximum exposure 1o credit risk as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016 was as follows:

2017 2016
Fimamuial Al i Fimancial lul RN
115w L] ANEHIDUTL paxelx LT LT o
EErEEEIEEEEEEE '“_u',"jb ErmEmEEsaEETEE EEErEEEEEEELEE :Rup.uﬂl EaEEmEEEEEELEE
Long torm deposils Wi, 2ED SR, 2R GTE 0S54 Lo NiLE
Trude debis 118,246,761 118,246,761 108,125 822 10H, 125 822
Advansees and other reccivables Lazi410 123400 LBLG 1R IHLGIXE
Trade deposits and shart teom prepayments 2,532,754 2,532,745 68T 840 6A7 540
Cash and bank balances
lencluding cash in hands R LU e LT 18 HOF L BOE AH LD HOR
1A2.911.56% 1A2.911.569 14401741 148 400741
Trade debts

The Company evaluates customer's credit worthiness with reference to their historical
performance and market reputation.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade debts. At 30 June, the ageing of trade debts was as follows:

2017 016
I'.inr:._n- Imgalmwnl ﬁnﬁ\ I||||u lmnt
----------- L L L LI B | T
Fast due 0-30 days 53,028,541 - G1.50:.114 -
Past lue 3 1-60 davs 42,071,941 . 2R RIROAS
Past alue 690 days 15,263,312 14,691 504
Past ddue 911 20 days £ 400, 6GHS - 1. 591642
Past ddue masre than 120 days 2519202 - 5 NK097 -
118,246,761 — 108,125,822 —

Based on past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and other
recovearies,. the management balieves that lrade debts past due do not require any impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks, which are rated as follows:

ali
Mame of banks Rating - Ra nE
SpCncy Short term Long term
Bank Al Habib Limited PACREA LYES A+
MNational Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA
Habib Bank Limited JICR-VIS A=l AN

Mone of the financial assels of the Company are secured,

Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed
condilions, withoul incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the Company's repulation.
The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess
of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities by continuous monitoring of forecast and actual
cash outflows. The Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other
receivables logether with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables.
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The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include estimated interest payments.

Carrying Conlracinsl Hin meni s Hin v twelve e Twa o
Adrpabints Lk Mows anp bews fupapit b Do years fise sears
D L 1 111 L I
207
Nawalewivative filmangial fanbifatses
Long tevm boan - Secwred 10N 56, 00 121 ERS, 169 16, S08, K25y 15,900, 2 v B4 S ZE. 417902
Crediori, sconscsd sl sther lisbaltics BRI MG ETE REEGAATL EI MWl KT
Shueit dcimm horrowhngs 2 &b (EH P8 L' L] 256 05 - g 5
[ErN e T ENEE) [N EAR L 15 LY ) L KT
JilE
Narpalerivarive fimaansiel furbalaey
Lawng term Baan - Secwned 1,20, 540 A Ful) 4 2 12,000,715 10 2Im 500 12958,00) 2R, 16 R4S
Creslitors, soorsed mnd other listilitics LA LT ARG N0 554 06 002
HRhawri forrm hormowings ELAE 1] LR ETAR Y]
07 6T A8Y RN [ R LT 10,228 531 12558 1) 21 Dy K4S

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its heldings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

35.4.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises
mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign
currencies.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than Pak Rupees (PKR). As the Company exports its products, accordingly
it is exposed to currency fisk, primarily with respect to trade debls denominated in US
Dollars (USD).

Exposure to currency risk

The summary of the quantitative data about the Company's exposure to foreign currency
risk is as follows:

2017 2016
Average rate for the year usD 103.54 103.64
Spot rate as at 30 June UsD 104.80 104.70
Trade creditors usoD 293,267 B9, 832
Trade creditors Rupees M 9.40;..404

Sensitivity analysis

A five percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Rupee against foreign currency as at 30
June 2017 would have increased / (decreased) equily and profit and loss account by
Rs.1.537 million (2016: Rs.0.470 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remaining constant.
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35.5

35.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumant
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial
instruments was;

2017 2016
{(Rupeas)

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets

Cash al bank - deposit accounts %“"Z:% 33.116.488
Financial labilities

Long term loans 103,564,100 51,270,540

Short term borrowings 258,080 963,441

103,820,190 52,233,981

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The impact of change in fair value due to a change in interest rate is not considered to ba
material to these financial statements.

Cash flows sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the end of the reporling period would have
increased / (decreased) equity by Rs.1.006 million (2016: Rs.0.191 million). This analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant.

35.4.3 Equity price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific (o the
individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Company does notl have investments in listed equity securities and is not exposed 1o
market price risk.

Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as 10 maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the
returmm on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders.

The Company is not exposad to extornally imposed capital requiremant.

36 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain the future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the
return on capital employed, which the company defines as operating income divided by total capital
employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company’'s objectives when managing capital are:

(i)

to saleguard the entity’'s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
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(i} to provide adequate return

The company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assels o reduce

debt.

Neither there were any changes in the company’'s approach to capital management during the year nor

the company is subject to externally imposed capilal regquirements.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
§ Capacily Production
Units TR T ST TR T 2006 Remarks
1] Excroise books Larceosge Sx. 642 SE A 56,176 s, ALH b Due 1o exten shaft
b Sensahzed paper Raolls 216,00H) 216000 33187 36,856 Due o Lk of demand
) Prolabels Sq. Mater 2, 750,00 2 0K OO0 4,336,380 1482032 Due o extra shaft.

37.1 The capacity is determined on single shift basis.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on 18th Seplember 2017 by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

GEMNERAL

This financial statements is presented in rupees and figures have been rounded off to nearest rupee.

T

ABBAS SAYEED
CHAIRMAN

ABID SAYEED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Pattern Of Share holding - Form "34"
Shareholders Statistics As At June 30, 2017

Number Of Share Holding Total Shares
Share Holders From To Held
279 1 - 100 7,688
211 101 - 500 63,884
112 501 - 1,000 91,925
131 1,001 - 5,000 352,076
18 5,001 - 10,000 132,480
2 10,001 - 15.000 25,500
5 15,001 . 20,000 91,933
1 25,001 - 30.000 27,428
3 30,001 . 35,000 99,493
1 35,001 - 40,000 36,793
1 40,001 - 45,000 42387
1 45,001 50,000 50,000
1 55,001 - 60,000 57,600
2 80,001 85,000 168,899
i 85,001 80,000 85,500
1 95,001 100,000 100,000
1 100,001 - 105,000 103,200
1 115,001 . 120,000 120,000
1 130,001 - 135,000 134,746
1 175,001 180,000 179,000
1 185,001 180,000 186,467
1 200,001 - 205,000 201,384
1 325,001 - 330,000 330,000
1 415,001 - 420,000 416,201
1 420,001 425,000 420,793
1 460,001 - 465,000 464,326
1 575,001 - 580,000 876,721
1 680,001 685,000 680,270
1 750,001 755,000 753,206
803 6,000,000
Categories Of Mumber Of Total Shares
S. No. Shareholders Share Holders Held Percentage
1 Individuals TE4 4169771 69.50
2 Financial Institutions 2 3,299 0.05
3 Investment Companies 3 717,375 11.96
4 Joint Stock Companies [ 13,471 0.22
5 Insurance Companies 2 321,384 5.36
6 Mutual Fund 3 728,826 12.15
7 Modaraba 1 2,000 0.03
8 Other 2 43,874 0.73
803 6,000,000 100.00
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Details of Pattern of Shareholdings as on June 30, 2017

LS. No._Categories Shareholders Shares Held % Age |
1 Associated Companies 680.270 11.34
Management & Enterprises (Pvi.) Limited 680,270
2 MNIT & ICP 472.469 T1.87
Mational Bank of Pakistan-Truslee Department NI(U)T Fund 464,326
Investment Corporation of Paksitan 5112
IDBL (ICP) Unit 3,031
3  Directors, CEQ, their Spouses and Minor Childern 2,044,341 34.07
Mrs. Muleika Sayeed 134,746
Mr. Abbas Sayeed 420,793
Dr. Asadullah Sayeed 416,201
Mr. Abid Sayeed 853.206
Mr. Zahid Dada 3,000
Mr. Sayeed Imran 2,500
Mrs. Nadia Sayeed W/o. Abid Sayeed 27428
Mrs. Nusser Sayeed W/o. Abbas Sayeed 186,467
4 Executives Nil
5 Individuals 2,018,231 33.64
6  Public Sector Companies and Corporation 201,384 3.36
7 Banks, DFIS. NBFIS, Insurance Companies, Modarabas 583,305 9.72

Joint Stock Companies, Mutual Funds and others

Total 6,000,000 100.00

Shareholders Holding Five Percent or More In The Company

Mr. Abid Sayeed 853,206 14.22
Management & Enterprises (Pvt.) Limited 680,270 11.34
National Bank of Pakistan-Trustee Department Ni(U)T Fund 464,326 7.74
Mrs. Aliya Rehman 576,721 9.61
Mr. Abbas Sayeed 420,793 7.0
Dr. Asadullah Sayeed 416,201 6.94

$5th Annual Report 2017



& PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

FORM OF PROXY

I'We
being a member(s) of Pakistan Paper Products Limited holder of
ordinary Shares as per Share Registrar Folio/CDC Account No.

hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss. Folio/CDC Account No,
of Karachi or failing whom Folio/CDC Account No
of

who is also a member of the Company as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my / our
behalf at the 55" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on Thursday 26"
October 2017 at 11:30 am and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2017
Rs.5/=
Revenue
Stamp
Witnesses: (Signature should agree with
the specimen signature registered
1: Signature with the Company)
Name:
Address:
CNIC:
2: Signature L
Name: &
Address:
CNIC:
Important:
1. This form of Proxy, duly completed and signed, must be deposited at the Company s Registered Office not later than 43 hours.
2. This form should be affixed by the Member or by his / her attomey duly authonized in writing. 1€ the member is a Corporation, its

comman scal should be affixed to the instrument.
3. A Member is entitled to atiend and vote at the meeting may appoint any other Member as his' her proxy to attend and vote on his' her
behalf except that a corporation may appoint a peérson who 15 notl a Member,

For CDC Account Holder ( Corporate Entities:
In addition of the above following requirements have 1o be met;

I.  The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC Numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
.  Attested copies of CMIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be fumished with the proxy form.

L. The proxy shall produce his’ her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting.

1¥.  Incasc of corporate entity, the Board of Dircctors resolution £ pawer of attomcey with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it
has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.
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Promoting Education,
Development, & Quality Products.

PRO LABELS

UKAY
[

» Pro Labels - Self Adhesive labels in roll form.

» Exercise Books

» Plotter Paper

= _,,- \.ﬁ??‘n % . agn
et - ““E > » Ammonia Sensitised Paper

Head Office & Factory:

Pakistan Paper Products Ltd.,

D/58, S.I.T.E. Estate Avenue, Karachi-75700




